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Telecommunications Bureau, 202–418–
0600, or e-mail mmccarri@fcc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Following 
is the complete text of the Public Notice: 
This Public Notice advises interested 
persons of the seventeenth meeting of 
the Public Safety National Coordination 
Committee (‘‘NCC’’), which will be held 
in Washington, DC. The Federal 
Advisory Committee Act, Public Law 
92–463, as amended, requires public 
notice of all meetings of the NCC. 

Dates: September 20, 2002. 
Meeting Time: General Membership 

Meeting—9:30 a.m.-12:30 p.m. 
The NCC Subcommittees will meet 

from 9 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. the previous 
day. The NCC General Membership 
Meeting will commence at 9:30 a.m. and 
continue until 12:30 p.m. The agenda 
for the NCC membership meeting is as 
follows: 

1. Introduction and Welcoming 
Remarks. 

2. Administrative Matters. 
3. Report from the Interoperability 

Subcommittee. 
4. Report from the Technology 

Subcommittee. 
5. Report from the Implementation 

Subcommittee. 
6. Public Discussion. 
7. Action on Subcommittee 

Recommendations. 
8. Other Business. 
9. Upcoming Meeting Dates and 

Locations. 
10. Closing Remarks. 
The FCC has established the Public 

Safety National Coordination 
Committee, pursuant to the provisions 
of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 
to advise the Commission on a variety 
of issues relating to the use of the 24 
MHz of spectrum in the 764–776/794–
806 MHz frequency bands (collectively, 
the 700 MHz band) that has been 
allocated to public safety services. See 
The Development of Operational, 
Technical and Spectrum Requirements 
For Meeting Federal, State and Local 
Public Safety Agency Communications 
Requirements Through the Year 2010 
and Establishment of Rules and 
Requirements For Priority Access 
Service, WT Docket No. 96–86, First 
Report and Order and Third Notice of 
Proposed Rulemaking, FCC 98–191, 14 
FCC Rcd 152 (1998), 63 FR 58645 (11–
2–98). 

The NCC has an open membership. 
Previous expressions of interest in 
membership have been received in 
response to several Public Notices 
inviting interested persons to become 
members and to participate in the NCC’s 
processes. All persons who have 
previously identified themselves or 

have been designated as a representative 
of an organization are deemed members 
and are invited to attend. All other 
interested parties are hereby invited to 
attend and to participate in the NCC 
processes and its meetings and to 
become members of the Committee. 
This policy will ensure balanced 
participation. Members of the general 
public may attend the meeting. To 
attend the seventeenth meeting of the 
Public Safety National Coordination 
Committee, please RSVP to Joy Alford of 
the Policy and Rules Branch of the 
Public Safety and Private Wireless 
Division, Wireless Telecommunications 
Bureau of the FCC by calling (202) 418–
0680, by faxing (202) 418–2643, or by E-
mailing at jalford@fcc.gov. Please 
provide your name, the organization 
you represent, your phone number, fax 
number and e-mail address. This RSVP 
is for the purpose of determining the 
number of people who will attend this 
seventeeth meeting. The FCC will 
attempt to accommodate as many 
people as possible. However, 
admittance will be limited to the seating 
available. Persons requesting 
accommodations for hearing disabilities 
should contact Joy Alford immediately 
at (202) 418–7233 (TTY). Persons 
requesting accommodations for other 
physical disabilities should contact Joy 
Alford immediately at (202) 418–0694 
or via e-mail at jalford@fcc.gov. The 
public may submit written comments to 
the NCC’s Designated Federal Officer 
before the meeting. 

Additional information about the NCC 
and NCC-related matters can be found 
on the NCC website located at: http://
wireless.fcc.gov/publicsafety/ncc.
Federal Communications Commission. 
Jeanne Kowalski, 
Deputy Division Chief for Public Safety, 
Public Safety and Private Wireless Division, 
Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.
[FR Doc. 02–20560 Filed 8–14–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6712–01–P

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Sunshine Act Meeting

AGENCY: Federal Election Commission.
Date and Time: Tuesday, August 20, 
2002 at 10 A.M.
Place: 999 E Street, NW., Washington, 
DC.
Status: This meeting will be closed to 
the public.
Items to be Discussed:

Compliance matters pursuant to 2 
U.S.C. 437g. 

Audits conducted pursuant to 2 
U.S.C. 437g, § 438(b), and Title 26, 
U.S.C. 

Matters concerning participation in 
civil actions or proceedings or 
arbitration. 

Internal personnel rules and 
procedures or matters affecting a 
particular employee.

Date and Time: Thursday, August 22 at 
10 A.M.
Place: 999 E Street, NW., Washington, 
DC (ninth floor).
Status: This meeting will be open to the 
public.
Items to be Discussed:

Correction and Approval of Minutes. 
Draft Advisory Opinion 2002–09: 

Target Wireless by counsel, Diana 
Hartstein. 

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on 
Fraudulent Solicitations, Disclaimers, 
Personal Use of Campaign Funds, 
Increased Civil Penalties, and Inaugural 
Committees. 

Routine Administrative Matters.
Person to Contact for Information: Mr. 
Ron Harris, Press Officer, Telephone: 
(202) 694–1220.

Mary W. Dove, 
Secretary of the Commission.
[FR Doc. 02–20819 Filed 8–13–02; 11:11 am] 
BILLING CODE 6715–01–M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 02–12] 

Bernard & Weldcraft Welding 
Equipment v. Supertrans International, 
Inc.; Notice of Filing of Complaint and 
Assignment 

Notice is given that a complaint was 
filed by Bernard & Weldcraft Welding 
Equipment (‘‘Complainant’’), against 
Supertrans International Inc. 
(‘‘Respondent’’). The complaint was 
served on August 9, 2002. Complainant 
alleges that Respondent violated 
sections 10(b)(2)(A) and 10(d)(1) of the 
Shipping Act of 1984, 46 U.S.C. app. 
sections 1709(b)(2)(A) and (d)(4), by 
refusing to release certain cargo it 
committed to deliver in accordance with 
the terms of a bill of lading it issued, 
unless the consignee remits charges in 
excess of those set forth in Supertrans’ 
tariff. Complainant seeks reparations 
and certain other relief set forth in its 
complaint. 

This proceeding has been assigned to 
the office of Administrative Law Judges. 
Hearing in this matter, if any is held, 
shall commence within the time 
limitations prescribed in 46 CFR 502.61, 
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and only after consideration has been 
given by the parties and the presiding 
officer to the use of alternative forms of 
dispute resolution. The hearing shall 
include oral testimony and cross-
examination in the discretion of the 
presiding officer only upon proper 
showing that there are genuine issues of 
material fact that cannot be resolved on 
the basis of sworn statements, affidavits, 
depositions, or other documents or that 
the nature of the matter in issue is such 
that an oral hearing and cross-
examination are necessary for the 
development of an adequate record. 
Pursuant to the further terms of 46 CFR 
502.61, the initial decision of the 
presiding officer in this proceeding shall 
be issued by August 11, 2003, and the 
final decision of the Commission shall 
be issued by December 12, 2003.

Bryant L. VanBrakle, 
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 02–20714 Filed 8–14–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6730–01–P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 02–10] 

All Flags Forwarding Inc.—Possible 
Violations of Sections 10(a)(1) and 
19(d) of the Shipping Act of 1984, as 
Well as Section 19(c) of the Shipping 
Act of 1984 as Amended by the Ocean 
Shipping Reform Act of 1998; Order of 
Investigation and Hearing 

Notice is given that on August 1, 
2002, the Federal Maritime Commission 
served an Order of Investigation and 
Hearing on All Flags Forwarding, Inc. 
(‘‘All Flags’’). All Flags is a previously 
licensed ocean transportation 
intermediary (‘‘OTI’’) operating as a 
freight forwarder and a non-vessel-
operating common carrier. Until May 
12, 2002, All Flags maintained an ocean 
freight forwarder bond and an NVOCC 
bond. Subsequent to the termination of 
All Flags’ financial responsibility on 
May 12, 2002, its OTI license was 
automatically revoked on the same date 
pursuant to the Commission’s 
regulations at 46 CFR 515.26. 

It appears that between April 2, 1997 
and August 17, 1999, All Flags and its 
principals knowingly and willfully 
collected freight forwarder 
compensation from at least three ocean 
common carriers on thousands of 
shipments without performing any of 
the required functions. This activity 
appears to have resulted from another 
NVOCC consistently listing All Flags 
and the name of its President in the 
freight forwarder box on oceans bills of 
lading for shipments processed entirely 

by that NVOCC’s employees. 
Furthermore, between April 18, 1997 
and December 15, 1998, it appears that 
on at least twenty-one occasions All 
Flags and its principals knowingly and 
willfully shared a portion of the 
compensation with the NVOCC. 

This proceeding therefore seeks to 
determine (1) whether All Flags violated 
section 10(a)(1) of the Shipping Act of 
1984 (‘‘1984 Act’’) and 46 CFR 510.22(a) 
by directly allowing another NVOCC to 
obtain ocean transportation at less than 
the rates and charges otherwise 
applicable by knowingly and willfully 
sharing a portion of its unwarranted 
freight forwarder compensation with 
that NVOCC; (2) whether All Flags 
violated section 19(d) of the 1984 Act 
and 19(e) of the 1984 Act as amended, 
as well as 46 CFR parts 510 and 515 as 
amended, by knowingly and willfully 
obtaining freight forwarder 
compensation without performing the 
services required for the receipt of such 
compensation; (3) whether, in the event 
violations of sections 10(a)(1), 19(d), 
and 19(e) of the 1984 Act and/or 46 CFR 
parts 510 and 515 are found, civil 
penalties should be assessed and, if so 
the amount, and (4) whether, in the 
event violations are found, an 
appropriate cease and desist order 
should be issued. 

The full text of the Order may be 
viewed on the Commission’s home page 
at http//www.fmc.gov/ or at the Office of 
the Secretary, Room 1046, 800 N. 
Capitol Street, NW., Washington, DC. 
Any person may file a petition for leave 
to intervene in accordance with 46 CFR 
502.72.

Bryant L. VanBrakle, 
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 02–20672 Filed 8–14–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6730–01–P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 02–11] 

Empire United Lines Co., Inc.—
Possible Violations of Sections 10(a)(1) 
and 10(b)(1) of the Shipping Act of 
1984, and Section 10(b)(2)(A) of the 
Shipping Act of 1984 as Amended by 
the Ocean Shipping Reform Act of 
1998, as Well as the Commission’s 
Regulations at 46 CFR 515.31(e) as 
Amended; Order of Investigation and 
Hearing 

Notice is given that on August 1, 
2002, the Federal Maritime Commission 
served an Order of Investigation and 
Hearing on Empire United Lines Co., 
Inc. (‘‘Empire’’) an ocean transportation 
intermediary (‘‘OTI’’) operating as a 

non-vessel-operating common carrier. It 
appears that, with respect to thousands 
of shipments between April 2, 1997 and 
October 5, 1999, Empire knowingly and 
willfully provided false information by 
listing a freight forwarder on numerous 
bills of lading for Empire’s shipments 
thereby allowing the freight forwarder to 
collect unwarranted compensation from 
several ocean common carriers. Also, 
between April 18, 1997 and December 
15, 1998, it appears that on at least 
twenty-one occasions Empire collected 
a portion of the unwarranted 
compensation from the freight forwarder 
through invoices for various alleged 
services and products. It further appears 
that during the same approximate time 
period, Empire processed twenty 
shipments documented by invoices that 
indicate that the rates assessed and 
collected differ from those set forth in 
Empire’s ATFI tariff. 

This proceeding therefore seeks to 
determine (1) whether Empire violated 
section 10(a)(1) of the Shipping Act of 
1984 (‘‘1984 Act’’) by knowingly and 
willfully obtaining transportation at less 
than the rates and charges otherwise 
applicable by the receipt of an unlawful 
rebate resulting from Empire’s 
collection of a portion of unwarranted 
freight forwarder compensation from 
another OTI; whether Empire violated 
section 10(b)(1) of the 1984 Act and 
10(b)(2)(A) of the 1984 Act as amended, 
by charging different compensation for 
the transportation of property than the 
rates set forth in its published tariff; 
whether Empire violated the 
Commission’s regulations at 46 CFR 
515.31(e) as amended, by knowingly 
and willfully providing false 
information to several ocean common 
carriers on documents concerning 
Empire’s shipments; whether, in the 
event violations of sections 10(a)(1), 
10(b), and 10(b)(2)(A) of the 1984 Act 
and/or 46 CFR 515.31(e) are found, civil 
penalties should be assessed against 
Empire and, if so, the amount of the 
penalties to be assessed; whether, in the 
event violations of sections 10(a)(1) and 
10(b)(1) of the 1984 Act are found, the 
tariff of Empire should be suspended; 
whether the OTI license of Empire 
should be suspended or revoked; and 
whether, in the event violations are 
found, an appropriate cease and desist 
order should be issued. 

The full text of the Order may be 
viewed on the Commission’s home page 
at http//www.fmc.gov/ or at the Office of 
the Secretary, Room 1046, 800 N. 
Capitol Street, NW., Washington, DC. 
Any person may file a petition for leave 
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